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Introduction

On April 6, 1983, a California Superior Court jury in Ventura County convicted Michael
Angelo Morales of the 1981 Lodi rape and murder of 17-year-old Terri Lynn Winchell. The jury
found that Morales committed the murder while lying in wait, by means of torture and he had
personally used a hammer and knife in the commission of the murder. The jury returned two
verdicts imposing sentences of death for Terri Winchell’s murder.

Over the past 23 years, Morales has presented a series of legal claims to state and federal
courts challenging his conviction and sentence. Numerous courts have reviewed and rejected
Morales’ direct appeal, two state habeas corpus petitions and a federal habeas corpus petition.

Morales has now asked the Governor for a grant of clemency. The San Joaquin District
Attorneys Office, which prosecuted Morales, will soon be filing a response. If the Governor
grants clemency, Morales will not receive clemency unless the California Supreme Court concurs
with the Governor’s decision. The Supreme Court’s concurrence is necessary because of
Morales’ prior felony convictions for robberies and burglary.

The purpose of this document is to provide background information on this case. In
addition to factual descriptions of the crimes, we have included photographs of Terri Winchell
and letters from friends and family members. Additionally, you will find a chronology of the
litigation in this case, information on upcoming executions in California and general information
on capital punishment in California.

For additional information, please contact either:

Nathan Barankin Jonathan Raven

Director of Communications Deputy Attorney General

Press Office Director, Office of Victims’ Services
California Department of Justice California Department of Justice
(916) 324-5500 (916) 324-9945
nathan.barankin@doj.ca.gov jonathan.raven@doj.ca.gov



mailto:jonathan.raven@doj.ca.gov
mailto:nathan.barankin@doj.ca.gov

Michael Morales
Burglary and Robberies

Morales was convicted of felony burglary on October 4, 1979 and sentenced to prison.
Shortly after killing Terri Lynn Winchell, Morales was convicted of two counts of robbery for
which he was eventually sentenced to state prison. In that case, Morales entered a market to
purchase beer. When a store clerk would not allow him to purchase beer, he left and later
returned with two companions. Morales and the two others held the clerk, put a knife to his face,
hit him with a milk crate and kicked him. One of his companions then knocked down a pregnant
female clerk who suffered numerous head and facial cuts. The total loss of money, merchandise
and equipment damage was $2,529.
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Terri Lynn Winchell
1981 Murder, Rape and Torture

On January 8, 1981, twenty-one-year-old Michael Morales murdered and raped
seventeen year-old Terri Lynn Winchell, with his nineteen-year-old cousin, Rick Ortega. In early
1980, Ortega and seventeen-year-old Randy Blythe had a homosexual relationship. During this
time, Blythe also had a dating relationship with Terri Winchell. While Terri didn’t know about
the homosexual relationship of Blythe and Ortega, Ortega knew about Blythe’s and Terri’s
relationship. Ortega was extremely jealous of this relationship.

Ortega and Morales conspired to murder Terri as “pay back” for Terri’s involvement with
Blythe. Ortega and Blythe had a stormy relationship. Ortega reacted in threatening manner to
Blythe’s attempts to end their relationship. Ortega was also openly hostile towards Terri. In the
weeks before the murder, Ortega set up a ruse to trick Terri into believing that Ortega wanted to
make amends and become her friend. Morales “practiced” how he was going to strangle Terri,
and told his girlfriend on the day of the murder how he was going to strangle and “hurt”
someone.

The day of the murder, Ortega tricked Terri into accompanying him and Morales in
Ortega’s car to a remote area near Lodi, California. There, Morales attacked Terri from behind
and attempted to strangle her with his belt. Terri struggled and the belt broke in two. Morales
then took out a hammer and began hitting Terri in the head with it. She screamed for Ortega to
help and attempted to fight off the attack, ripping her own hair out of her scalp in the struggle.
Morales beat Terri into unconsciousness, crushing her skull and leaving 23 identifiable wounds
in her skull.

Morales took Terri from the car and instructed Ortega to leave and come back later.
Ortega left and Morales then dragged Terri face-down across the road and into a vineyard.
Morales then raped her while she lay unconscious. Morales then started to leave, but went back
and stabbed Terri four times in the chest to make sure she died. Morales then left Terri, calling
her “a fucking bitch,” as he walked away. Terri died from both the head and chest wounds. Her
body was left in the vineyard naked from the waist down, with her sweater and bra pulled up over
her breasts.

Morales confessed to killing Terri to jailhouse informant Bruce Samuelson, as well as his
girlfriend Raquel Cardenas and his housemate Patricia Flores. Morales threatened both Cardenas
and Flores prior to his trial so they would not testify about what he told them. Specifically, he
admitted that he sat behind Terri after she had been lured into Ortega’s car, he put his belt around
Terri’s neck and strangled her until the belt broke, he repeatedly hit her over the head with a
hammer until she was unconscious, he took her out of the car and dragged her into a vineyard, he
raped her, and he left her but then returned to be “sure” she was dead.

Within two days of the murder, Morales was arrested at his residence. The police
found Morales’ broken belt, containing Terri’s blood, hidden under a bedroom mattress. The
police also found three knives, the hammer bearing traces of blood hidden in the refrigerator
vegetable crisper, and blood-stained floor matts from Ortega’s car in the trash. Terri’s purse and
credit card were also in the house. Ortega’s blood-spattered car was impounded. Morales had
used $11 from Terri’s purse to buy beer, wine, and cigarettes on the night of the murder.
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Mom and Baby Terri



~Barbara Christian~

Jonuary 13, 2006

The Honorable Armold Schwarzenegger
Governar of California

State Copitel Bldg
Sacramento, CA 95814

Charles F. Schultz

Supervising Deputy District Attorney
San Joaquin County District Attorney
222 E, Weber Ave., Room 202
Stockton, CA 95202

RE: Michoel Morales/ Terri Winchell Case & LAI9BIXS50966
From: Terri Winchell's mother, Barbara Christian

The pain and heartache that Michael Morales inflicted on me and Terri's family will
never end, She can never be reploced! She was our only doughter and sister. There
is always on empty seaf af our meals! When I hear a little girl call, "Mama!®, T turn
around and lock. Pain strikes my heart like the knife he used on Terril Agomy! When
I see a little girl with long, brown hair, or when I see a teenager that reminds me of
her, my heart aches with lasst When T hear music ployed that she used 1o listen o
or sing, I hurt! T see familiar places we used to be together. Memories, more paind
We sang and hormonized together. She was not only my beloved daughter, but she
was my best friend. As a little child I tought her how to swim T carefully and
tearfully nursed her through her childhood illnesses and hurts, Christmas and
Mathers Day are especially hard to get through. Every time I hear a date between
1963 ond January B, 1981, T think of how old Terri would have been then, and what
we would have been doing at that time. My thoughts are constantly of her, T think of
her each night when I go to bed, and I think of her when I awaken in the morning. I
have ta force my thoughts from her murder scene.  She is never out of my mind, My
litthe. girl will never know the joy of having her own little child and hearing it call her
"Mama™ I will never know the joy of being Grandma to ittle ones she might have
had! My sons have lost their only beloved sister! We ore ol devastated!
*Mane oyt b conmamatd with griaf, yea, sy seul ond my belld
For my kfe is spent with grief_and my yeors with sighng” Pealm 319, 10



~Barbara Christian~

She was o wital part of the community spreading joy ond hope to others. She loved
little children and delighted in ministering fo them af the Special Olympics for
handicapped children. 'What a bghthouse she was fo everyone arcund her! Her voice
was a goft from God, and she uphfted everyone who heard her sing!

She was such a wital and necessary port of our family! Every holidey gathering is
olways sod becouse there is an empty chair of the foblel Yes we ore going on with
our lives, but the pain and loss will be with us as long as we live! The agony will never
endl Memories and love never die. The knife will never leove my heort! 1T hos been
twenty five long years of heortache and sorrow now. All of us who love Terri are
desperate to see justice for this crime. It will not bring Terri back, but of least it
will bring justice to @ murder that took place twenty five long years ago. Why has
this man been allowed 1o live when he has admitted that he joyfully and fiendishly
destroyed my little girl? If he wonted fo get rid of her, he could have mercifully
killed her with a quick bulle? To her head, Why did he have o torture ond mutilate
her? His penalty has rightfully been decided. The judge and jury did thesr part. It
is high time for this monster fo answer to fod. There will never be closure for us as
she con never be refurned. However, we will have satisfaction that this monster will
never be able to harm amyone again, that he will not have the breath of life while
Terri lies cold in her grave, and that he will finally have to stand before God, the
Suprema Judgs, and answar te Him for this demanic crimel

< S —
Elarbava (Yhristian.

Mother of Terri Lynn Winchell

"Mase oye of contumed wiih griel | yen, sy soul and my belly!
For my ife is spent with greel, and my yoors sth sigheng”™ Pasls 319, 10
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Mack A. Winchell

Ther Hemershle Arnodd Schwarmenegper
Csmvprmar of O aliforms

Sophs 4 apebad [1idg
S raans, i A W1E1A

Chathes F. Sahailue
Su—whﬂlﬂlr-p Dasirict Abomey
Son Jowapin Uasingy [Hatrct Adlomars
112 E. Webst Ave., Room 200
Stockton, CA 3207

RE: Exocution of Mickae] Morabes, Case 814 | S0CS0M66

1w eh Hwthr of Toerrl Lymn Wimchsell Oinby b parend of & mardersd chibd could begen o imagine ibhe
paist | v born oroed 1o Lve with B tee pal Persty fve yoars. Tom's mrder foerver chanped o

Lves
g e v Ernlerrall e bowrors of e Y etnes sl Korra eed bnomd s reiere sa iy o B
bt prossd o wree e commry. Uha lon desplidr s ilacided bt prodecied whils ke brothers
Ireaal o gorrelaesd dhanger.

Sk wi e Dight of o life groimg o bak e mual bve aid pivy. St beeriimee vy liithe “Moloncbion™ whuch
meand Livle Darlisg or Linke Seecthean. Ske waa 8 vory gelied chikl, 5 walled of § monibs obd and
bugan singing and playing the piaso ot tiree yoars of age Wihen the was sevem yoar old she jumsged ool
ol & ires sl bevlis bév arm and diskocased har albow, Her mother and | rushed her o the hoapital, and |
Bad i e tha wivong ot (o her sa her modher booame wery siek oi ber siomach o oo daughion's seriows
injary. | boved b0 lake ber fabing and camping. Amsther fivorso thing we shared wai poing out o
ﬂr.;ﬂhhrﬂﬂauhﬂlullu She sspurinlly liked the juicy fst om the shoak, snd we shared
thal oy lugeEle

Thew come the mighe bt muther callead me fo tell e st Torr was mising. Torr bl boos w8 caning
and cheodinl dsmghied thal i wai malids ber mol i kol ber mofher kacw whore o wes Fosr Tor her
eafety redbed over ow Foar tormed mitc agewry ot | o that che had beew ssendersll | e sever
b e wame Sorsbrs s ook 8 heils oy beert el saght 8w monts ek | ool bk =
ey oty e thoned e g ny eart kon oot § bl cmn Y leem o e tapern of ey uimging

holichsal Morubes amd Racky COviegn destroyes) e gy osir Gemiby U juss o might, ey boul omsr [afrle
il amit ol omif levwn fesrwver! Her mother, v bevthors and | all are left with unending pam snd kosselines.
hu!ﬂhﬁ.hhﬂﬁh“-ﬂhhlﬂdﬂrmh alfier they
msrderssd Torri. They deserve o bo ewsouted? The lethal imgection is foo goosd h“m#h}
called asmlinals bwvause anbmals o ol LI sl pisdibabe For i Fan of i Thess iwi musislees are

imhuman and sro nod 1o 1o Eee!?E

Amnuary ik, Sl

hlack A Wischerdl
Fasther iaf Daery | ymm 'Woinschefl

,r;::ff’d:’;-i’hm

11



T
s
I

Jurumry 29, 00

The Honoerbis Amald Schwarreneggper
Chrrwprmeot of Califormza

Suste Cupuanl Bldg
Sacramenio, T4 #5514

Tharbes F. Sciwaler
Suporyrenyg Dopety Dot Aoy
Il E Weber Ave., Room 202
Saockion, CA ¥5M2

RE: Pendmg Excoubion of Mishae! Morales - Fely 20, 2006 - Case @ LA TP SCFS

It i musch to my dismay that | am wiiting you reganding clemency for the man that has sdmitted to the
brutal rape, torture and murder of my sister Terry Winchell that oocurred 23 yoars ago, | was ninc
vears ofd when these brutalies occurmed and remember all too clearly ihal might and the moeming afber
iy sisier’s life was lierally choked, beaten, sabbed and crushed out of her

Tern and | wene the youngest in our family and sook prade in the fact that our older brothers frecly
served ou presl coundry with honor and valer in a time of nood. | remember listening 1o ihe lapes of
her snging up on itage &l seven years old | remember watching her play the plane and sing 1o an
suciboriam full of people, comfartabis and knowing ihe was making cveryont foel pood She was =
artest bt e was hey love We shurnd o room together and | remember ber teacheng me how 1o pray
and bow it's Empoctant that we ool only pray for owr famibcs and us bt abo pray for our encmics. |
Wikt 100 young 1o utderstend thes, but she endersiood all too well that we are 10 kove cur enemies. How
many can sxy this and sctually walk i out? Mer lasi deod was one of Lindmess and mercy fof @
peychopath who in fum, gave her no metey. She was a troe blcssing and benedit 1o sockety,

We, a8 family, and friends, have had o void in our lives for the past 25 years. An empty seat st the
dimner table, sormow il conversstions of remembrance, oo many fear shed. Having 1o explain o our
young ones what happened o their Auntie Tern, whom ithey've never had a chance (o meel, having 1o
explain 1o fricnds who this besutiful girl is in all these pictures. This s nod just something that has
happened 25 vears ago and it nol just something that has regretfially been stirred wp in all of our lives
again thanks 1o all the modis and prolesten of the death penally. It was a life chamging orime that has
il oy tortared one innocent Life b sleo the lives of many and should have never happened!
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It has been a long, bonely [oumey for me o et where | am loday. Mol o have my sister there when |
WMH&“LT&EH&IHMWWW?W

relstionships. Remembering how much she loved sports, then lamenting on tho fact ihat Il never
¢ able 1o see me compele. Watching the sorrow in my Moms eyes over the years get darker
arker the obder she gets. Terri was my Mother's only daughter and her best friend, wa-w-:ﬂw
b iy modber. Mo ane from the munderers family has ever even senl their condolences 10 my Mother or
our family. lmagine for & momsen i you will, having such a beswiiful child who excelled in everythmng
she dhad, then to have thad proceoa il tomaresd and mutilsed by an enrcmorseful deviant of socicty,

There s o doulbt thet snyene woukl agree afler rosding the cvonts thal ook place, that s was a
borrific crime of enfubomable evil. To belittde this Efe chanpng event by suggesting that Michael
Mocabes be prantad chemency i an innsll o way the ot To have o lnlon b proloston of the death
penalty who have never gone through this type of Fagedy and whe are malong e, the vicizms, out o
b the “haad prvs”™ for wanting ko e his sentence compietod is an strocity!

We live in a beautiful country, with a sirict set of laws, Wars have been fought and blood has been
ghed to uphold our frecdoms and safety. Whether you believe i God or nol, you can agree that we
have been given free will 1o choose our own paih in life. No one can take this away amd no one can
argue thad choosing o liva by the lew or agains ibe law 18 our choiee e make, Every chobce we make
in life has consequences westher good o bad. When we choose to break the law, we give up our righis
and have 1o sulfer the condequences and pay the fine whether we want 1o or nol. ['s ibe low, Morales
knew the low before be commitied ihin capital crime. He freely chose 1o bresk, not only “mans Law™,
bt aleo ihe moral law God placed on all of our hearis & seoitient human beings with free will,

Morales hus already spent more time in the safety of “Death Row™ then mry sister was allowed 10 spend
in thas lifie. She wan not piven say sppealy for her life and her cnes for help weni snnoised eveept for
the: e witsos buatefislly cul her lefe ibort. Morales b beon proes nghts he never allowad iy wser. B8
then i 100 long to move o the neat step in bis sontenee. If the desth pemally i peing 10 take s
long to finish the sentence, then we shoukd put these men m “peneral popalation™ where they might be
dealt with accordingly. B is frustrating io know thal me. my Bamily and friends have boen paying for 25
years 1o keep this man safe and healthy bebind bary while we're all missing ihe chance 1o share our
lives with Term. Some have said that be is remorsefil and has given his life o God. | can only hope
this is trae, but that's between him and God. As believers we are bound to obey the laws of the land,
ond we eagerly wail in anticipation o0 mect our Loed, and if be truly has given his lify io God, he
should fellow throagh with s senlence ke & man. The fact that he is fighting this praves oflerwise.
(A tree shall be knawn by its fmiit™) Mow with your kelp, he wall be pail o sleep in o quict, comrolled
environment, That's more then he gave my sister, In that fair? At least it's justice upheld by the law,
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H's 00 bused that poople are forcing their views on the death penabty in o situstion like ths. We sl have
the nght o behove how we wand o beleve, bt this i aold & gocstion of “Shoulld the desth ponalty
stand™ I i & question of “Shookd this smbence be camiod 0wl If you gramd thes morderer hemency
afier e has sdmined, boen tried, convicled, and been given years of sppeals, you will shatier and
virlale the very thing you are swom o uphold, What wwald that tell the resl of society abowi our legal
system T The dexslh penalty & for extrome cases and this mosl certainly qualifbes. Too many (housands
of our twxpayer dollan have been spond 1o keep thas man alive and healthy. Too mamy teary have bpen
sheed, i many bewris have boon broken, snd oo many bves huve boon sliored snd affeciod by the
chospe of thin evildoer. Since vou huve boen vwom o uphold the bow, | know you will do the rght

thang by mod granting this murder clomency.
Thank you for taking ibe time io read this letter and For dodmg ihe besil you oan in your offles,

Sngerely, -
Hsinn Chalk
Hrother of Tern Lynn Winchell
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ATTN. JEANINE VELASQUEZ

To Whom It May Concern:
My name is David Winchell the brother of Terri Lynn Winchell, who
was 8o viclously MURDERED by Michael Morales In 1981, MNothing will

bring back my sistér, a person whe was a BLESSING to those she met
and came info contact with. | remember her growing up what » joy
my litthe sister was. She had a beswtiful heart and filled with God's
love snd compassion for others which led her to help Ortega find a gift
for his (so called girl friend] Ortega lured her to her murder, She never
spread rumors that Ortega was 2 homosexeal. He was jealows of her
friendship with & boy namcd Randy, which was Ricky's gay lever. Temi
had no ideal that Randy was homosexual, Randy led anto Terrl that he
wad & good church golng Christisn. Morales and Ortega lured my
sister to her death, and | am sure they enjoyed killing her. Strangling
and bludgeoning her with a hammer and stabbing with & knife 1ill ahe
was DEAD, then raping her and left her naked in a field so the bags and
buzzard could eat her. NO MERCY NO PARDON MO CLEMENCY FOR
MICHAEL MORALES. DRTEGA SHOULD BE PUT TO DEATH FOR HIS
PART IN THE MURDER OF MY SISTER TERRI LYNN WINCHELL. Mo
amownt of pain Morales might suffer while being put te death can
compare to the PAIN my sister Terri Lyna Winchell felt while being
MURDERED by these two tick people. | foel some sympathy for
Moraies mother and family that they are aboot to loose Michael,
Morales mardared my sister and now has got to pay the price. My
mather has never really recovered from the loss of her only daughier
and my family has been denied the joy and love my sister had and
would have brought to our lives. Morales Is not sorry for the murder of
Terri Lynn Winchell, HE IS SORRY HE GOT CAUGHTIN Haw many other
crimes did he commit before killing my sistor Terd Lyna Winchell, Why
did his cousin ssk Morales to help him other than Orlega knew that
Morales wis 3 MURDERERT May God have no mercy on Mormles and

Ortega on that day of judgment.
David Les Winchelt, 10-year-eider brother of Temi Lyna Winchell

j - T % , .I. :
™AL MW el - [(+9€ 06
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lunaary 13, 2006

The Honommble Armsolkl Schwarsenegpor
Crovernar of Califomis

Hinbe Capital Fidg

Sacramenio, Ca 95814

Chasles F. Schaliz
Supervizing Doy |ttt Allsney
hwlmmm
12 E Webber Ave. Rooam N
Saowcicion, Ca 95200

BE- Mol bl SlermbenTorr Wbl Casse @ LA 10005000
Froee Tern Winchells brother, Rrsiicy 5. Wincheil

I am sencking this bener in gifors i let you kooow the family of my sister inchuding me
manks b ace justee carried ol lie Micheel Morsles. That justics will b cariel sl shen
Morales meets my little sisten’s (athey wiho she poceptod s Jesus Chnst. Chur fsmi by has
waited bong o it it b0 carry oul the jury”s seatence of Death, Tho way | foel
whout Mornbes is e in m covennd Pasiand wino deserves io dee, 180 naoned our [1ves
Forever. Every time | pass thaoagh Lodi, Califomia and soe graps vineynnds | pol
emotianally ek, angry, and sd thal my siber lhad Bo ome ihare o dofend her apabna
this cold blooded maunder commbtiod by Morales, My stor’s munder pains me vory
dooply and this in o padn ibai will pever eeud while | em alive.

Morales being exeouiod will cese parl of thist pain, never end it There s ol 8 doy thai
jpeees ey chat | b mud Bavwr & Ehwmagelt of Towri. My daaghicor was T st old whon bet
mard s Eak s ol by Ui bamiitiad, b ahes i 28 years ol with & senool T oyeai, @y
pramckan, ey both shag =il o wern chomied cast of sbmnng e wall of hic, lowr
arad fmemily with Tom

T 7ot

firadicy 5. Winchell ™
Heoibser of Term Lyan Wingbell
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HETO0E

Offcs of the ABcmey Generad
1300 | Street
Bacramanio, CA 55814

Attn. Jeaning Velasgues
FE Pending Exscubon of Michesl Marales - Fab_ 31 3008

Doar Ma. Velasquer

| @M wiiting 10 address our concems regarding any polental clemency for Michael

Mot akan in ght of his UPEOMINGg execubon Ha young murded viclim, Tarmi 'Winchell, was
@ very special person o my family. We grew up B8 cousing and were very dose W
mmmhmhnmﬂ-ﬂmﬂmm.nﬂqmm.hh
posni thad no closwns can be sccomplshed willl this sensence is camed out. You have no
u-mm“m_hmﬂMMIMHmhwﬂhmﬂ
tonune lads g8 toll on e mcther and brothams

Hrﬂ#n-—m.udmmmmhlmm
1mhﬂmmlu-ﬁgm_manw-n-mﬂr
beautiul basl had b CRDtvatng voo W el SNe would GO Ter weth P Lakenks @nd kv
welchang hpi' BACRBOMT 180 B beautiul poung woman it Pus e was Cul 100 short by @0
vl D T N Feever Evasn Mt Pud Inptaad of planseng oo leves | iound el
anreng hae funaell Kby husband and | weee 8 e polos SEB0N when Py Sund hee
by @ v S feghl Afer searcheng 1oF Pl WUl SUCOREE B CultoImE W
BOMMOERR | 280 Bivsly redbve o mry mend as @ o ol sl 5o besh The horror of & of wat
Fiart i formver Bt wital | nermesmiber T Mol i e semaris s dvil Kook o thes
rurderes s lace a8 they brought hem o the police: stason | 8 cormnced il Fes fype
of #rdl st ot e allced 10 ecape him sentence  Thes Aghimare mast end

The sxmcuSion i our WSt resor i ths ong oumey. We are often ssked. snce our ety
is Chastan, § we have mercy ior Machael Morales. | know we bebewe ihal

beal comes when usice prevals and marcy @ iol ours io give but God's Giod i the only
porson jo fully camy oul vengeance and jusbce, 88 @ Beongs o Him  And 8o we wast
This process has siresdy been delayed Beyond com pheiension Since 4 was never any
doubt whaether Mr Morsies commified his murdercus act, thare is no falhomable mason
wity thes sxacution should be delayed any longer We plasd with you for jusiics 10 be
complaled 8o haalng can finally begin for 5o involved. IT'N tima 1his mater be
conchated and this man be hended ower bo God, inndcnnl young gel, Terl, deserses
to be represented now.  This sentence being camed oul i her only vindication

o Bt

™
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Jamssary |7, 200G

The Honorable Amold Schwarsenegger
CGovernor of California

Seatc Capstol Bldg

Sacrasncmo, CA 3814

Charles F. Schulte

Supervesing Deputy District Atiormey
San Josquin County Dhstrict Adtomey
222 E Weber Ave , Room 202
Stockton, CA 95202

RE: Pendmg Execation of Michacl Morales - Feb, 21, 2006

1 am writing 1o request that you reject any bids by Michael Morales for clemency as we near the date
of his execution  He was sefenced 10 death for the murder of my busband's sister and has avoided the
punishment for 25 years too long. My husband was robbed of the chance 1o raise his family alongside
of his sister.

Brian has vodd me about the close bond that his mother and sister shaved | have seen the pain behind
Bartara’s dark eyes from the day [ met her. Temi is remembered at every family gathering and ber
picture can be found in almost every room of our bouse, Our children have been told about what &
special and wonderful young lady their Auntie Terri was, but they will never have the chance to meet
her

Tern'"s death was brutal and her murderer was unfemorsefil. The desth of Michael Morales will not
bring Terri back to us, but it will close this chapter and allow for healing 1o begin

Chalk
Saster-in-Law 10 Terr Lymn Winchedl

Copy 1o
Jeanine Vicdlasquer, Victum Advocate
Office of Vietims Services

of Justice
1300 | Strect, Suite | 130-4
Sacramcato, CA 95214
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Jmnuary 18, 2004

T Phorc abie Aok St renegger
Cigrwprrige of Cliicereg
Seme Capmed Busbieny
Sacremento, CA 5818

Crariea F. Schults
Supsrising Deputy Desdnc] Atormey
San Josgun Counly Desinc Alorney
222 E Wabet Ave , Room 202
Siockion, CA G520

RE:  Muchasl MoralesTesri Winchell Case FLATBIIX 50065

in 95T, my parents ol all their famiy in s snd lowa, coming io Callomea by father had a
Erserud e @l ihals ol the demuse he nesded 1o move 1o sy Califomia. Ded wea prones 108
patsin fo slochal  To comphcate mallen. | was 8 chvonc asthmalic.  VWhen | was fve, my
maodher becarme pregnand  Loneliness. lear and padness becams e norm ol my mother  The
prary shoad would be brbulent. af best My parents eould separsie. Then reconcis only 1o
separabe again  Eventually thiry would becorms divorosd for good

| bliorv i wan arcund 18551960, dunng & separation fme. my mother mel Barbars Winchall.
Thay immediately became fast fiends as thay had much in commeon; both had drinking husbands,
beth apsdind ko hiours aleha minding the kids, snd iy bBoth shared a love for Jesus and Tor singing
couniry goapol music. My Mom had found & “sisier in Barbara, and thair frendship grow very
sliong W all ipaid @ kol of tirs lopéthel. Baitaa had three sons, and she had despesabely
wnited & deughbes. N wae 1963 when Ter was bom | was nins

Al P years sl by, bolh my mothed 5nd Barbers dooiced thes husbands mel and mamed
difiprent meer  Haang besn Brvtugh handahgs logeteey. Mo ared Bart's fnevcil conteusd i
grom  Thes e Pusbands wiis Boive 0 e church snd Bwry formed & gosgel sergeg groug thal
brareiend downed 1o local churches and performasd.  Wee 8l corm 10 iove Ble Terr o @ ahe wers
part of cur farlly . becauses i the ool sense, she wan.  She was & delighi o sl

Fm eling you all of the 8o you will underiand the mlationship establishod Defeosn our o
fneniliss.  Tadr! sk o o itthe sister 1o me, end B § precios nscs 10 my molhar Terr was wery
talenbed, @ from e lime she was very Biny ahe would sing with Mom and Barbara. This Brilked
my miihar snd by thi ime Term was 5, she vwas quile o littks pedormes. Polsed beyond her years,
s luid @n angokc sl hel would causes afyone o smide  She was flamboyant, vibrani and
beaudiful  We all loved her vary miuch
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Page 2

The rught Term deasgpgmdres, | revreniber Birturs calng my house sad sshing § Tern had stopped
by (Ths would have been out of characier as She never td Brytherg her mother dan know
bl | beded Pepr | Pl St Pl 0D ekl Oonily BEsGE 11 30 pen - Bad Barbar s maed sk irees Tern
s e | el Bhig wass 3 ifthe extrerme ot Then my it called ) we evaded up all gesng
nm“nmnwu--m“uuﬂmq‘

Thasew in o e b0 falk aboul whal happened Ty all comimon knoslsdgs sround e enlire
cormmarity  Thare's also no nesd fo el about the gralt of Mchael Morales, nol ks manbon his
coimin, Ficky Ortega.  They'we admified io whal they gkl Tha poird | ward o maks b s b
aeciuiition bo kiling Tem Lynn ihad nighd, lchael borakes slso killed my mothes Thue ery of agaony
onemeng Irom Mom was a oy | had never hoard before ard dadn | e again. Tesri's death (and (P

brutabty of # o) pushed my mother ower the edge

This waa frightening fo my sister snd | s cur mathed wis § vary Bong woman, All | remember
i days of har sobbing uncontroflably. of hsving io ssdsls her, i monthe of umbness and
degireanion thal surrounded our family. My mother wis fever e seme. Bhe was 8o devaslabed
hhTﬂhmmm-mmmmhﬂnnmﬁvm
recovered conlinued to e sndther 23 yoars., but ihore was 8 sormow in hes eyes Bl never
haaled Bhe died & coupks yaafs Bgo, ancous 1o 9o home b be with Tem

Mchael Woraies robbed me of @ e saster, he robbed me of witching her sryoy all the reasures
of Wle, he wadding dary, the birth of har childien M robised me of my own chikdnen knowing her
an] eyoying B beauty she offered o fresly. He lorosd me 10 have 1o explan fo my own poung
ctviid wetty T wan md konges with un He han fored me o vs 58 guarded manmes hawving fully
e ntruiiee] (e “wefual 5" of be

Tk Pt Pt ilecimed horaters. o il heve ihal b 8 6ven & Cofviadern atan of thes ime (7% pears afier
Far e B ety AT B vy sl Rl MO G CyTell Blead ous uadkcadl syslem,

2l yms | aem cyrecal

Thewe s ol & dany poes by that | don't Bhers of Tedr Linforiurutely st ervery reemasmbrince of P
comes e Fasgus remembwances of Mohged Morskes 1901 8 amannyg hal 8 man ['ve nesr Sven
il . affeciod my life (and countiess offers] | wueoh 8 devasiabng way.  Tern Lynn Winched
i ol e cnly marder be comemitied had dany

it is my plea that be be alowsd the opporfursty 1o lace dealh & such 8 sympaifobc manner a5 a
inthal ipeciion.  P-L-E-A-5-E!

ee—
oDt~
Cloas Pafaonal Friend

Copy bo
Joanine Yelasquer Victim AdvoCale
Difice of Viclime' Banates
Deparimen] ol Justice

1300 | Stasl, Sufte 11504

Gmoi mmasbn, CA 00014
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Junuary 14, 2006 P

Jeanine Velasquez
Office of the Attomey Genearal
1300 | Streal

Sacramento, CA 95814

Dear Ms, Velasques,

I"m writing this letter to let you know that my life changed the night of
Jonuary B,19€1, T will pever forget the call 1 got from Barbara, Terri
Winchells mother. Also the night | was wakened with the news thal my
BEST, ULUSES |, MEARKES | friends lifcless body was found in a vineyard,
Terri and | were nol only friends she was my sister. You see my mom began
babyaitting Terri at the age of vwo. Her mother worked long hours, which
meant a ot of playtime. We did everything together and planned to always
be there for each other. We were until Michase]l Morales took her into his
hands and brutally murdered her.

Michael Morales has gotten 25 years longer to breath, eat, sleep,
communicate with family, laugh and cry. It is his time to meet and be judged
by the Almighty Godd!

Michael Morales's death won't bring Terri back, but it will bring some
closure.

Yet | will never forget the 15 wonderful years | had with my friend and
sister Terri Lynn Winchell!

Thank yvou for your time!

Hl:i.!l.:'ng},

Oinrvie o)
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The Honomble Arnold Schwarzenegger
Governor of California

Sunte Capaisl Building

Sacraments CA #5814

Dear Governor Sclvwarzenegger,

1t is with much thought and consideration that | write these words to you. Today, January 8, 2006 marks
pwenty five years that my best friend Terri Lynn Winchell was murdered. Since her murder, every year in
my lifie | recall this date and ahways wondered what could | have done to have changed the course of
cvents that ked up to her death. We were both senion in high school  We were looking foruard i oo
schoal prom, our senior trip, plans for what college we were going to apply 10 and dreamed of mamage,
becoming & wife and mother. So much has happened since Temi has been gone from our lives. Seeing my
reflection in the mirror reminds me of tha every morming,

Time has helped numb the events of that horrific night.  The years that followed | have struggled with the
paralyzing fear thas Michael Angebo Morales would somehow hurt my family. | testified on the behalf of
the Saate in convicting bim  During the years the State was preparing its case, | was sent gway 1o live in
Mexico with my Aunt and Uncle. Mr. Morales was & member of a gang called ~Linle Unity™ 1 had
received threats on my life that if | wene to testify against him, that what happened 1o Terri would also
happen 1o me and my family. My parents sent my sisters io stay with other relatives 1o keep us from harm
Orvernight it seemed that our Bimily was tom spast and our lives were in pure chacs

1 lived in Mexico for | vear, Then | moved to Glendale, California with other relatives for & months. |
longed so much fo be back home in Lodi. When | finally did get to come home, my parents were very
protective of me and kept me close 1o home. My house was like a prison. [ fieht safe in my house, but |
was 50 Jonely and apant from the world

| had to learn to want 1o live again. My dreams had med indo mightmares. And [ didn’t know how to
meave forwand after Terri's murder, 1 had 1o find the courage each day 10 bring me closer 1o the day |
would have to 1estify im coust for Terri's trial

Being in the courroom with ber killer was extremely emotional for me. | remember | could nof stop my
body from shaking 1t was difficult 10 speak and 10 breath. 1 could only look af the judge with tears falling
dovwwn my face and mouth the words “1'm sorry”. He was kind enough to recess my testimony for 15
minutes while | tried 1o compose myself. District Atiormey Garber esconied me out of the courtroom. |
was 50 embarrassad. For two years | tried to imagine mysedf in the courtroom and how this scene would
play itself out. | wanted io be strong for Terni. And | felt 5o nsuch hate for Mr. Morakes. 1 wanted to hun
him like be had hun Tern amd me.

When District Attomey Garber and | left the courtroom, my motber was in the reception area. | was
eryving uncomrollably and saying that | was sorry 1o Disirict Attorney Garber. My mther held me close to
try and comfort me. She ook me to ibe ladics resiroom. There, she spoke saltly 1o me while she held my
fince in her hands. These wonds she spoke to me. “My sweet child, | know this is the most difficah thing
you could ever have imagined happening to you in your life. | see that you afe afrasd, not for yourself but
fior vour sisters, your faber and me. W love vou so much. All that has happensd 1o vou and our Bxmily is
atest We have slways taught you right from wrong. You have a strong and besutiful soul Your truth and
love for your friend Terri is still here m you heart. No one can ever take that sway from you Trust it Be
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mot afrand 1o tell the 1nah sbout what vou know  Remember your promese 1o Tem  You are here 10 bring

by puatice  Amed wou will do so with your bead bagh  Shaea theeen im the comrtronem who you ate Tell them
who Term wd b wou 18 your life  They will see you, they will see her bnd you con walls tall in that truth

Daly then can you be able to walk towards your future ™

i Bagged sy mother hike never before | washed my face snd | renemed 1o the countroom. | apelogised o
the judge and the jury panel  Asd | focused on Duitrict Anormey Garber | found myy voice and | was
strong. And | iold the truth sbou what | new 1o the jury memben.  Looking back on thai day when | was
om the witness stand, | realired that | was no longer a child | was & young woman who kept a promise of
truth for my frbond Terri. Al off s who loved Terri have el s helpless in that we could not have been
there 10 save ber from the brutality that Mr Morales committed upon ber

Murder a3 described in Webster's Dictionary states this . Murder; homicide with premeditation and
malicious intent 1o kill, This description is what Mr. Morales conanilited upon Terri Lynn Winchell on
Jarwiary B, 1981, Clemency is defined as . Mercy shown by someone whose duly of Ranciion it is 1o
adminisier jusiice or punish offerses.

Thee jurors in Terri's trial weighed all the evidence and Found that Mr. Morales had merit 1o receive the
death peralty He has never shown remorse of taken responsshility for his oruel action towards Term
Raiher, he has grven excuses for himaell That be waa an PCP and akobad while he commatied thes
marder, that he didn't et o fair trial and that the reason be got the death penalty i because be s of
Mexican descent  His attorney tried his case and be was judge by a jury of his prers. After twenty five
vears | wonder ki he pondered on all the people other than Term that be has burt  { Astached please read
ehee lotiey | hurve semt 40 himm )

Crorvrrmos Schvwarcenegger, | commend you for your servics 1o my home Stase of California | think of the
wwrnome respoenibildy that you heve then onto yoursdf on all the matiers that pertan 1o governing our
besstifisl Seate  And | know that thes stustion of granting or demvying clemency muit be Biavy of youd
heart What My Morshes has dome can not be changed  Term m gone And she did not deserve 1o be
sranghed, of to be beaten with & kammer, or stab with » knife and raped and left 1o bleed 1o death from
shock.  He lefl ber body m & vineyard on @ cold dark might For 32 hours ber famaly and friends along with
ihe Stociios Police Depaniment searched for ber. Thoss officers huid worked with Tern's mother Barbars
wihi had worked as o dispatcher until her retirement i October of 1980 The officers who finally found

:ﬂm“mhmm They had o tell one of ibeir own thal ber procious [mtke girl was

Ot entire comeminity along with the Tokay High School student body mourned fisr ber She struggled
and fought with all her maght and she begged for her life. Mr. Morales showed her no mercy. This is the
last phase of & long and difficult journey in finding justice for Terr Lyna Winchell. 1| am prepared to
wlﬂllullﬂlﬂlﬂhﬂlﬂl[hﬂﬁﬂﬂmmmﬂﬁiﬁiTﬂ And | stand iall is justice for
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Cirvrms ot rosoygged | widl pray for you sad your Demily s mary Cand gude you. sl his sodom
After yoms e the case o Morakes vi State of Californes. o m with confidence thas | reguest thet yous
e ber i yrma defry By CheERTy

Ramspspctifially

Christing Salakirs-Lamdre
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January 17, 2006

Jeanine Velasgues

Oifice of the Attormaey General
123000 | Street

Sacramento, Ca. 95814

Dear Jeanine,

I am writing this letter 1o you on behall of & wenderful girl that was killed

mnd tortured by Mike Morales, Her righis and life was taken irom ber on a

cobd January night in 1981 in a vineyard near Lodi, Ca. He is to be put 1o

death in February for the murder of our darling litde sngel. He must bt

et clemency for being a Monster, He took 8 beautiful and talented girl

rmmmhwnmthzdmmwﬁlyﬂ grcip of peopde she may have
i near.

Tern Wincheil, the only dsughier of my best Iriend, WS & pood, graag
and boving, girl. She was a top stedent and had many Irends. Barbara
needs (o have closwure for this crime that changed her world lorever. A
wonderful and piving family that was & pleasure 1o have in my homs

We loved Terni like a daughter and we miss her and her talented voice and
mussc that she wrote. The important thing to remember i that The Beauty
was killed by the Beast. It is now his time to pay for & useless crime’

Please pul this man to death for the crime of taling o boautiful life, He
haidl nothing Lo gain in this,

Tk you,

L -,»4;';"":" r,cr.-é’?:.c..ﬁ'ﬂ" fﬁﬁ{_ ,r"’%f:f(:’..;_:_)
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Mom and Terri - Age 4
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~ WITHOUT YOU -

e Terwi Lymmh

Going on without you is so hard, my little girl,
the pain is such a heavy load to bear;

There seems to be no moment when you're not upen my mind,
and lirtle things | want so much to share.

You were such a rainbow full of sunshine, love and joy,
your presence filled my life and made it swees;
Why God blest me with an angel such as you 1 do not know,
| only know you made my life complete!

The years have passed, but oh the pain still lingers in my heart,
It never seems to lessen through che years;
1 watch the sky and try to catch a glimpse of Heaven's land,
I call, and try to see you through my tears!

But there's a veil berween us, and | cannot get across,
and your name, unanswered, comes again to me;
And | am left, amidst my tears, in silence and alone,
with nothing left, but pain and memory!

My lirtle girl, you cannot know, how much | loved you so,
but if the Lord to me could condescend ...
I'd climb the stars to Heaven's gate, and pray on bended knees,
for just a chance to see you, once again!

Lizee, your Mocher,
Barbara Christian
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Terri-Age7
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The Crimes

January 8, 1981

January 9, 1981

January 10, 1981

The Trial

April 6, 1983

April 25, 1983

Appeals

April 6, 1989

June 26, 1989

July 13, 1989

November 27, 1989

Case Chronology

Morales murders Terri Winchell in San Joaquin County by
attempting to strangle her, beating her over the head with a
hammer and stabbing her in the chest with a knife. He also
rapes her before killing her.

Rick Ortega is brought in for questioning about the
disappearance of Terri Winchell and

confesses to committing the murder of Terri
Winchell with his cousin Michael Morales.

Morales is arrested for the murder of Terri Winchell.

After a change of venue is granted, Morales is convicted in
Ventura County Superior Court for the murder and rape of
Terri Winchell. Morales is further convicted of conspiracy
to commit murder.

After a penalty trial, the jury returns a verdict of death.

California Supreme Court affirms the conviction and death
sentence in People v. Morales, 48 Cal.3d 527 [Crim. No.
23153/S004552]

Ventura County Superior Court sets scheduled
execution date for September 22, 1989.

California Supreme Court stays execution pending
determination of petition for writ of certiorari.

United States Supreme Court denies certiorari in Morales v.
California, 493 U.S. 984 [No. 89-5534]

30



December 18, 1990

February 8, 1991

March 25, 1991

April 24, 1991

August 9, 1991

July 20, 1992

November 16, 1992

December 16, 1992

April 21, 1993

July 28, 1993

January 14, 1994

Ventura County Superior Court sets second scheduled
execution date for February 15, 1991.

United States District Court for the Central District of

California stays execution pending appointment of new
counsel and determination of petition for writ of habeas
corpus in Morales v. Vasquez, No. CV- 91-0682-WPG.

United States District Court for the Central District
of California further stays execution pending
appointment of new counsel.

United States District Court for the Central District of
California further stays execution to allow newly-appointed
counsel by August 22, 1991 to prepare petition for writ of
habeas corpus.

United States District Court for the Central District
of California further stays execution pending final
disposition of petition for writ of habeas corpus.

Morales files petition for writ of habeas corpus in United
States District Court for Central District of California; case
now entitled Morales v. Vasquez, No. CV-91-0682-DT

United States District Court dismisses 32 claims in
the petition and orders an answer on the 20
remaining claims.

Morales files his first petition for writ of habeas
corpus in California Supreme Court, No. S030276.

Morales files second petition for writ of habeas corpus in
California Supreme Court, No. S032386.

California Supreme Court denies as untimely and on the
merits both petitions for writ of habeas corpus in separate
orders. In re Morales, Nos. S030276 &S032386.
[unpublished orders]

Morales files first amended petition for writ of habeas

corpus in United States District Court for Central District
of California.
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April 22,1994

November 9, 2001

October 10, 2002

March 19, 1999

July 9, 1999

July 28, 2003

October 21, 2004

March 1, 2005

June 29, 2005

October 11, 2005

January 18, 2006

United States District Court dismisses first
amended petition for writ of habeas corpus as
untimely.

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit
reverses the dismissal and remands the case back to the
district court to be heard on the merits in Morales
v.Calderon, 85 F.3d 1387.

The district court grants summary judgment denying relief
on 32 claims that had previously been dismissed as
untimely.

The district court denies relief on last of series of summary
judgment motions disposing of all of the remaining 20
claims. The petition for writ of habeas corpus is denied.
Morales files a notice of appeal.

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit issues
its opinion and affirms the denial of relief. Morales v.
Woodford, 99-99020.

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit issues
its amended opinion and again affirms the denial of relief.
Morales v. Woodford, 388 F.3d 1159.

Ninth Circuit denies the petition for rehearing and
petition for rehearing en banc.

Morales files petition for writ of certiorari

United States Supreme Court denies petition for writ of
certiorari in Morales v. Brown, No. 05-23.

Ventura County Superior Court sets third scheduled
execution date for February 21, 2006.

32



Upcoming Executions in California
The three (3) additional capital cases that could possibly receive an execution date in 2006 are:

Mitchell Carlton Sims. On December 8, 2005, a three-judge panel of the Ninth Circuit
Court of Appeals rejected Sims' legal claims for relief, and the court also declined
en banc review. As a result, Sims' remaining legal option is to ask the US
Supreme Court ("SCOTUS") to review his case. Sims will likely file a petition for
writ of certiorari (request for SCOTUS to review his legal claims) sometime in the
next few weeks. SCOTUS can choose to act on Sims' request at any time. If
SCOTUS declines to review Sims' case during its current term, the Los Angeles
District Attorney will seek an execution date in 2006.

In 1984, Mitchell Sims was hired by Domino's Pizza in South Carolina. He came
to believe his boss was responsible for Sims' losing a portion of a bonus to which
Sims thought he was entitled. In November of 1985, Sims was hired as a delivery
driver by another Domino's Pizza establishment, located in Hanahan, South
Carolina. Approximately two weeks later, on the night of December 3, 1985, Sims
murdered two employees who worked at the restaurant: Gary Melkie, assistant
manager, and Chris Zerr, delivery driver.

Sims and his girlfriend/accomplice, Ruby Padgett, fled to California. After
arriving in Glendale on December 8, Sims visited the local Domino's, claiming he
needed directions. The following night, he called the pizza store at 11:03 p.m. and
ordered pizza to be delivered to his nearby motel room. At 11:26 p.m., 21-year-
old Domino's employee John Harrigan left the parlor in his Toyota truck to deliver
the pizza.

At approximately 11:45 p.m., Sims and Padgett entered the Domino's Pizza
parlor. Sims approached the front counter, pointed a gun at the manager and
ordered the employees into a back office. The manager Spiroff warned Sims that a
delivery driver was expected to return shortly. Sims removed his sweater, revealed
a Domino's Pizza shirt bearing John Harrigan's name tag, and chuckled, "No, I
don't think so."

The employees were placed in a freezer and tied by the neck with rope fashioned
in such a way that they were forced to stand on tiptoes to avoid strangling. Sims
and Padgett emptied the store's register, robbed the employees and left. Police
officers arrived at the Domino's Pizza parlor at 12:30 a.m, having been alerted by
an off-duty Domino's employee who had coincidentally entered the store. Police
rescued the employees in the store.
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After proceeding to the motel room, the officers heard the sound of running water
from inside the bathroom. Opening the bathroom door, an officer found the dead
body of Harrigan in the bathtub. The bathtub was full of water, and Harrigan's
body was submerged under the water with his back parallel to the side of the tub.
His head was located immediately under the water spout, submerged
approximately one inch under the water line, with cold water running onto the
back of his neck. His wrists had been bound behind his back; his ankles had been
bound, and his feet and hands had been "hogtied" together behind his back. His
head had been covered with a pillowcase bound tightly around his neck with a
rope. A folded washcloth had been placed inside his mouth, secured by a sock tied
around his head.

Following the trial and conviction in the California case, Sims was tried and
convicted in South Carolina of the murders of Melkie and Zerr during the
commission of a robbery, and was sentenced to death. The convictions and
sentence of death were affirmed by the Supreme Court of South Carolina.

Kevin Cooper. On February 9, 2004, the eve of his scheduled execution, an en banc
panel of the Ninth Circuit granted Cooper's request to file a successive habeas
corpus petition in federal district court in order that "easily available" scientific
tests could be conducted to determine Cooper's innocence. After conducting the
requested tests (which confirmed Cooper's guilt) and exploring numerous other
evidentiary matters at the request of Cooper, the federal district court in May 2005
denied his habeas petition. Cooper is now seeking review of the lower court
decision in the Ninth Circuit, and briefing on the matter is scheduled to conclude
January 27, 2006.

After this briefing is concluded, the Ninth Circuit has a variety of options.
Depending upon what course of action it chooses, and if Cooper is denied relief,
Cooper's case could result in an execution date in the spring of 2006 or sometime
in 2007 or even later.

Among other offenses, Cooper was convicted of the 1984 first-degree murders of
Doug Ryen, Peggy Ryen, Jessica Ryen and Christopher Hughes. The jury
sentenced Cooper to death after finding a special circumstance of multiple
murder.

Cooper had been an inmate at the California Institute for Men, a state prison
located in Chino in San Bernardino County. Cooper had been convicted of
burglary under the name of David Trautman. On June 1, 1983, he was transferred
to a minimum security portion of the prison. The next afternoon, on June 2, 1983,
he escaped on foot and made his way to a house in the nearby Chino Hills (the
Lease house), where no one was living at the time. Cooper was the subject of a
massive manhunt following his escape from prison. He slept in the closet of the
bedroom nearest the garage. The Lease house was the closest neighbor to the
Ryen house, about 126 yards away. The window by the Lease house fireplace
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provided a view of the Ryen house. Cooper unsuccessfully sought assistance
from two former girlfriends in an effort to get out of the area. Failing to get the
help he needed to escape, and realizing he could not remain in the Lease house
indefinitely, Cooper found himself in a desperate situation. So, on the night of
June 4-5, 1983, Cooper murdered Doug and Peggy Ryen, their 10 year-old
daughter Jessica Ryen, and a neighbor boy, 11 year-old Chris Hughes, who was
spending the night with the sole survivor, eight year-old Josh Ryen. The
California Supreme Court referred to the crime as a “nocturnal massacre.”

Cooper used a hatchet and a buck knife from the Lease house to commit the
murders. Doug Ryen had at least 37 separate wounds, Peggy 32, Jessica 46, and
Chris 25. Jessica also had some chest wounds, probably inflicted after death by a
pointed instrument such as an ice pick, which Cooper used to carve on her chest.
Josh had fewer injuries, including wounds to the head caused by a hatchet and a
stab wound in the throat. The evidence indicated Cooper helped himself to a can
of beer from the Ryen refrigerator after slaughtering his victims.

Cooper stole the Ryen family station wagon. The car was recovered in Long
Beach on June 5, 1983, a day after the murders. Cooper showed up in Ensenada
Mexico on June 9, 1983, where he hitched a ride aboard a boat with an
unsuspecting husband and wife, Owen and Angelica Handy. The Handys were
planning to sail to Costa Rica. An unexpected storm forced the Handys to sail
north up the California coast to Pelican Bay near Santa Barbara. Cooper allegedly
raped a woman there (never prosecuted), and was captured by the Coast Guard
after he dove off the boat, swam to a dinghy and started to row for shore.

Cooper testified in his own defense and admitted being in the Lease house after
his escape from prison. He denied ever being in the Ryen home. He claimed he
simply walked down the hill from the Lease house on the evening of June 4, 1983,
and hitchhiked out of the area, eventually making his way to Mexico where he
met the Handys.

In the penalty phase, evidence was introduced about Cooper’s kidnap and rape of
a high school student in Pennsylvania who interrupted Cooper burglarizing a
home. Cooper also had been convicted of two counts of burglary in Los Angeles
County. Cooper presented the testimony of friends and relatives regarding his
good qualities and their love for him.

Recently concluded post-conviction DNA testing Cooper sought to prove his
innocence, proved the opposite. Cooper was the donor of the DNA from a spot of
blood from the hallway inside the Ryen home which placed Cooper in the middle
of the crime scene. Cooper was also the donor of DNA from two cigarette butts
recovered from the Ryen station wagon. Cooper’s DNA and Doug Ryen’s DNA
were also present on a t-shirt with smears of blood.
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As the description of the appellate process below attempts to show, a capital case nears
completion when the federal courts have made a final ruling on the defendant's habeas corpus
claims. Those cases that are still being reviewed by state courts are nowhere near conclusion.

Aside from the Sims case mentioned above, there are no other California capital cases pending
final review before SCOTUS.

There are numerous California capital cases currently pending in the lower federal courts,
however. As of November 2005, there were 170 cases pending in the federal district courts. Of
those, at least 52 are "on hold" pending exhaustion of outstanding habeas claims in state court.
These cases are at different stages in the process, and, as is more fully explained below, the stage
a particular case is at determines how imminent a final judgment may be out of the federal courts.

Some have also asked for the status reports on certain "high profile" capital cases, many of which
are still awaiting action by the CSC. Here are a few examples:

Richard Allen Davis (#5056425) - he was convicted and sentenced to death on
September 26, 1996, but he was not appointed an appellate attorney until June 13,
2001. Four years later (July 11, 2005), Davis' attorney filed his opening brief with
the CSC. The Attorney General's response is due no later than May 15, 2006.

Richard Allen Davis kidnapped twelve-year-old Polly Klaas from her own
bedroom, strangled her to death, and left her under a piece of plywood in the
brush in a deserted area, where her decomposed body was discovered two months
later. Forensic evidence revealed that Davis sexually assaulted Polly. Davis was
on parole for two felony assaults on women when he committed this crime, and
had a history of kidnap and violent conduct. Davis was convicted of kidnapping,
robbery, burglary, assault with a deadly weapon, false imprisonment, attempted
lewd and lascivious acts on a child under 14 years of age, first degree murder with
special circumstances.

Ramon Salcido (#5018814) - he was convicted and sentenced to death on December 17,
1990, but his opening brief with the CSC was not filed until eight years later
(June 18, 1998). The case has been fully briefed before the CSC since May 26,
2000, but the court has not scheduled oral argument as yet.

On April 13, 1989, Ramon Salcido went on a homicidal spree in Sonoma County.
He murdered seven victims in all, including his wife, two of his children, three in-
laws, and a co-worker. One daughter, age three, remarkably survived, despite
Salcido's infliction of a severe laceration to her throat. Salicido also attempted to
murder another co-worker and his wife. After his crime, Salcido fled to Mexico,
where he was apprehended by Mexican officials, who expelled him and delivered
him to US custody for trial. The case was tried in San Mateo County on change
of venue in 1990.
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Richard Ramirez (#5012944) - he was convicted and sentenced to death on November 7,
1989, but his opening brief was not filed until 13 years later (March 1, 2002). The
case has been fully briefed before the CSC since December 31, 2003, but the
court has not scheduled oral argument.

During a string of 15 incidents committed in Los Angeles County between June
1984 and August 1985, Richard Ramirez brutally murdered, sexually assaulted, or
attempted to murder 23 people. Twelve of the incidents occurred between May
29 and August 8, 1985. These so-called “Nightstalker” crimes typically involved
night-time attacks on unsuspecting persons in their homes. He typically shot and
killed the adult male occupants of the homes he entered and restrained eight of his
female victims with handcuffs or thumbcuffs he brought to the scene. The
murders and attempted murders of his female victims were often particularly
brutal. He savagely cut the throats of five victims and committed other acts of
mutilation. During several of the incidents, Ramirez ate the victims’ food or
drank soda or juice.
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Death Penalty Litigation Process
in California

What follows is an extremely abbreviated summary of the capital appeals process. A more
detailed description can be found at the Attorney General's website:
http://caag.state.ca.us/piu/pdf/deathpen.pdf.

The Trial. The first step in all capital cases is the trial. In order to be death-eligible, a defendant
must have committed first-degree murder with at least one special circumstance. Unless the
defendant can afford to hire his own attorney, the court usually appoints two attorneys to
represent him during the trial.

The prosecution is broken into two parts - a guilt phase and a penalty phase. First, the prosecutor
must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant committed first-degree murder and that
the alleged special circumstance(s) is true. Second, the jury must determine whether the
defendant should be sentenced to life in prison without possibility of parole or death. If a
unanimous jury imposes a sentence of death, the following appeals process begins.

The Direct Appeal

California Supreme Court. Every capital sentence is automatically appealed to the California
Supreme Court ("CSC"). This is commonly referred to as the "direct appeal.” Even if the
defendant does not request or desire an appeal, the law requires that the CSC consider this direct
appeal. Due to factors such as certification of the trial record and appointment of a new attorney
to represent the defendant on the direct appeal, a final ruling out of the CSC is generally issued
several years after the date of conviction.

SCOTUS. If the CSC affirms the sentence of death, the defendant can seek review in SCOTUS.
If SCOTUS declines to hear the case, this process usually is completed within one year and it
represents the conclusion of the defendant's direct appeal.

State Habeas Corpus Proceedings

California Supreme Court. In addition to the direct appeal, a defendant may also file a habeas
corpus petition with the CSC. Habeas corpus is essentially an additional avenue of appeal for
defendants. It differs from the direct appeal in that it allows the defendant to raise claims based
on facts outside the trial record, such as ineffective assistance of counsel.

Often, the CSC appoints a new attorney to represent the defendant on his habeas claims. (In other
words, a defendant will often be represented by as many as four different attorneys during the
state process - two attorneys for the trial, one attorney for the direct appeal, and one attorney for
state habeas corpus proceedings.)

38


http://caag.state.ca.us/piu/pdf/deathpen.pdf

If the CSC believes that a hearing is necessary to resolve the defendant's claims, it will order a
lower court to conduct an evidentiary hearing. After an evidentiary hearing, the lower court will
present its findings to the CSC for a final determination on the defendant's claims.

It is not unusual for a capital defendant to file multiple habeas corpus petitions with the CSC. For
instance, Stanley "Tookie" Williams filed five separate habeas corpus petitions with the CSC
between 1989 and 2005.

If the CSC denies habeas relief to the defendant, he can appeal to SCOTUS for its review.

Federal Habeas Corpus Proceedings

Federal District Court. After a capital defendant has exhausted all of his options for state habeas

relief, he may file a habeas corpus petition in federal court seeking relief for alleged violations of
his federal constitutional rights. The defendant's habeas petition is filed in one of the four federal
district court districts in California.

It is not unusual for yet another new attorney to be appointed by the federal courts. (In other
words, a defendant will often be represented by as many as five different attorneys during the
state and federal process.)

In addition to legal briefs presented on the matter, the district court may order that evidentiary
hearings be conducted to explore the defendant's claims.

If the defendant raises claims that were not previously presented to the CSC, the federal district
court may put its proceedings on hold and require the defendant to first present those claims in a
new habeas petition filed with the CSC. If so, the process described for state habeas proceedings
above is followed.

There are no deadlines for the district court to act upon these habeas petitions, and final
resolution of such petitions can take years.

Ninth Circuit. Once the district court has taken final action on a habeas petition, the matter will
be appealed to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. That court often reviews cases in two phases,
first by a three-judge panel and then by an 11-judge panel (en banc™).

Similar to the district court, there are no deadlines for the Ninth Circuit to act on these capital
habeas corpus petitions. As a result, final resolution by the court can take years.

For example, Stanley "Tookie" Williams filed his first brief with the Ninth Circuit on January 12,
2000, and the court did not finally dispose of Williams' initial request for habeas relief until it
denied rehearing en banc on February 2, 2005.

SCOTUS. After the Ninth Circuit takes final action on the defendant's federal habeas corpus
claims, an appeal to SCOTUS is generally filed.
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Setting an Execution Date. If SCOTUS denies relief to the defendant, it is now time for the
prosecuting agency that obtained the original conviction to request an execution date. The
prosecutor asks for a "public session™ to be held in the county court where the conviction was
obtained, and the trial judge sets an execution date that is no sooner than 30 days and no later
than 60 days from the date of the public session.

Clemency Proceedings. Upon the setting of an execution date, the Governor establishes a
schedule for receiving briefs and consideration of a clemency request from the defendant.

SECOND OR SUCCESSIVE APPEALS

Although a capital defendant is entitled only one direct appeal, it is typical for the defendant to
request permission to file more than one habeas corpus petition in the state and federal courts.
The circumstances under which the courts will agree to consider and review such second or
successive appeals are quite limited, however, in light of the exhaustive state and federal judicial
review conducted previously.

Second/successive appeals are often filed during the so-called "11™ hour" of capital proceedings
after an execution date has been set and while the Governor is considering clemency. For
example, Stanley "Tookie" Williams filed second/successive habeas petitions during the
weekend before his execution.
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California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation
History of Capital Punishment in California

Last Modified: 7/20/2005 (URL)

History

Legal executions in California were authorized under the Criminal Practices Act of
1851. On February 14, 1872, capital punishment was incorporated into the Penal
Code, stating:

A judgment of death must be executed within the walls or yard of a jail, or
some convenient private place in the county. The Sheriff of the county must
be present at the execution, and must invite the presence of a physician, the
District Attorney of the county, and at least twelve reputable citizens, to be
selected by him; and he shall at the request of the defendant, permit such
ministers of the gospel, not exceeding two, as the defendant may name, and
any persons, relatives or friends, not to exceed five, to be present at the
execution, together with such peace officers as he may think expedient, to
witness the execution. But no other persons than those mentioned in this
section can be present at the execution, nor can any person under age be
allowed to witness the same.

The various counties may have some records of the executions conducted under the
jurisdiction of the counties, but the department knows of no compilation of these.

State Executions

Capital punishment on a county level continued until an amendment by the
Legislature in 1891 provided:

A judgment of death must be executed within the walls of one of the State
Prisons designated by the Court by which judgment is rendered.

In this statute, the warden replaced the sheriff as the person who must be present at
the execution and invitation to the attorney general, rather than to the district
attorney, was required.
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Executions were conducted at both of the California state prisons then
existing——San Quentin and Folsom. There apparently was no official rule by which
judges ordered men hanged at Folsom rather than San Quentin or vice versa.
However, it was customary to send recidivists to Folsom.

The first state-conducted execution was held March 3, 1893 at San Quentin. The first
execution at Folsom was December 13, 1895.

Lethal Gas

In 1937, the Legislature provided that lethal gas replace hanging, with August 27,
1937 as the effective date. The law did not affect the execution method for those
already sentenced. As a result, the last execution by hanging at Folsom was
conducted December 3,1937. The last execution by hanging at San Quentin was held
May 1, 1942; the defendant had been convicted of murder in 1936.

A total of 215 inmates were hanged at San Quentin and a total of 92 were hanged at
Folsom.

The only lethal gas chamber in the state was constructed at San Quentin. The first
execution by lethal gas was conducted December 2, 1938. From that date through
1967 a total of 194 persons were executed by gas, all at San Quentin. This total
includes four (4) women.

Legal Challenges and Changes

For 25 years after 1967, there were no executions in California due to various State
and United States Supreme Court decisions.

In 1972 the California Supreme Court found that the death penalty constituted cruel
and unusual punishment under the state constitution. As aresult, 107 individuals had
their sentences changed to other than death. In November 1972, nine months after the
decision, the California electorate amended the state constitution and overruled the
State Supreme Court.

In 1973 the United States Supreme Court held that the death penalty was
unconstitutional as it was being administered at that time in a number of states.

42



California legislation was passed in 1973 which made the death penalty mandatory
in certain cases under certain conditions. Among these were kidnapping if the victim
dies, train wrecking if any person dies, assault by a life prisoner if the victim dies
within a year, treason against the state, and first degree murder under specific
conditions (for hire, of a peace officer, of a witness to prevent testimony, if
committed during a robbery or burglary, if committed during course of a rape by
force, if committed during performance of lewd and lascivious acts upon children,
by persons previously convicted of murder).

In late 1976, the California Supreme Court, basing its decision on a United States
Supreme Court ruling earlier that year, held that the California death penalty statute
was unconstitutional under the Federal Constitution because it did not allow the
defendant to present any evidence in mitigation. Following this ruling, 70 inmates
had their sentences changed to other than death.

Capital Punishment Reinstated

The California State Legislature re-enacted the death penalty statute in 1977. Under
the new statute, evidence in mitigation was permitted.

The death penalty was reinstated as a possible punishment for first degree murder
under certain conditions. These “special circumstances" include: murder for financial
gain, murder by a person previously convicted of murder, murder of multiple victims,
murder with torture, murder of a peace officer, murder of a witness to prevent
testimony and several other murders under particular circumstances.

In 1977, the Penal Code also was revised to include the sentence of life imprisonment
without the possibility of parole. At that time, the punishment for kidnapping for
ransom, extortion, or robbery was changed from death to life without parole.
Treason, train derailing or wrecking, and securing the death of an innocent person
through perjury became punishable by death or life imprisonment without parole.

Proposition 7, on the California ballot in November 1978, superseded the 1977
statutes and is the death penalty statute under which California currently operates.
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Under state law, cases in which the death penalty has been decreed are automatically
reviewed by the State Supreme Court. The Supreme Court may:

e Affirm the conviction and the death sentence;

e Affirmthe conviction but reverse the death sentence (whichresults in aretrial
of the penalty phase only); or

e Reverse the conviction (which results in a complete new trial).

Even if the California Supreme Court affirms the death sentence, the inmate can
initiate appeals on separate constitutional issues. Called "writs of habeas corpus,"
these appeals may be heard in both state and federal courts.

Although the death penalty was reinstated in 1978, no executions were carried out
in California until April 1992 when Robert Alton Harris was put to death in the San
Quentin gas chamber. This was the first execution in more than 25 years.

Lethal Injection

In January 1993, a new law went into effect allowing inmates to choose lethal
injection or lethal gas as the method of execution. In August 1993, condemned
inmate David Mason was executed after voluntarily waiving his federal appeals.
Because Mason did not choose a method of execution, he was put to death by lethal
gas, as the law then stipulated.

In October 1994, a U.S. District Judge, Northern District (San Francisco) ruled that
the gas chamber was cruel and unusual punishment, barring the state from using that
method of execution. That ruling was upheld by the U.S. Ninth Circuit Court of
Appeals in February, 1996.

That same year, the Penal Code was modified to state that if either manner of
execution is held invalid, the punishment of death shall be imposed by the alternative
means. The law further stipulated that lethal injection become the "default” method
of execution should an inmate fail to choose. Serial killer William Bonin was
executed on February 23, 1996 by lethal injection, the first California execution
using that method.

Execution Costs

The cost of carrying out an execution in California is difficult to assess. The average
cost to house an inmate is about $30,929 per year. Staff assigned to the execution
team receive their regular, budgeted salaries. The cost of the execution procedure,
including the chemicals utilized, is minimal.
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The real cost involved in the capital punishment procedure is related to the court
reviews, both those mandated by the Legislature as well as the appeal procedures
initiated by the convicted inmate’s legal staff. These costs vary depending upon the
resources of the convicted inmate and the length of the court procedures involved.

Inmates on Condemned Status

All male prisoners on condemned status are housed at a maximum security custody
level in three units at San Quentin State Prison. Females are housed in a maximum
security unit at the Central California Women’s Facility at Chowchilla. The number
of condemned inmates has increased steadily since 1978.
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Lethal Injections Procedures
Last Modified: 7/20/2005 (URL)

When Execution Order Is Received

As soon as the execution order is received, the condemned inmate is moved into a
special security area of the prison. Based on hourly checks, staff document his/her
behavior and bring anything unusual to the warden’s attention.

The inmate receives priority visiting privileges; no visitors are turned away without
authorization of the warden. Every effort is made to accommodate visits by the
inmate’s attorney including weekend or holiday visits if necessary.

Pre-Execution Reports

Two reports are prepared within three weeks of the established execution date. The
first is 20 days before execution; the second is seven days before execution. Each
report includes:

e Psychiatric report - Results and interpretation of examinations, interviews and
history of the inmate by three psychiatrists which will be used to determine the
inmate’s sanity.

e Chaplain report - Comments on the inmate’s spiritual and emotional well-
being.

e Summary of behavior - Observations noted by case worker and custody staff.

e Cover letter from warden - Includes firsthand information from interviews,
observations or communication with the inmate and his/her family or friends.

The seven day pre-execution report discusses any changes that have occurred since
the first report.

Sanity Review Requests

Within 30 to seven days before the execution, the inmate’s attorney may submit
current psychiatric information that may have a bearing on the sanity of the
condemned inmate. This information will be provided to the panel of psychiatrists
to consider in completion of the pre-execution psychiatric reports.

46



Last 24 Hours

During the day before the execution, the warden will make special arrangements for
visits by approved family members, spiritual advisors, and friends.

About 6 p.m. the day before the execution, the inmate will be moved to the death
watch cell which is adjacent to the execution chamber. From then on, a three-member
staff unit will provide a constant death watch.

Soon after he is rehoused, the inmate will be served his last dinner meal. The prison
makes every effort to provide the meal requested by the inmate.

Between 7 and 10 p.m., the inmate may be visited by the assigned state chaplain and
the warden. The inmate may read, watch television, or play the radio. He can request
special food items and coffee or soft drinks.

The family, spiritual advisors and friends the inmate has selected as witnesses may
arrive up to two hours before the scheduled execution.

About 30 minutes before the scheduled execution, the inmate is given a new pair of
denim trousers and blue work shirt to wear. He is escorted into the execution
chamber a few minutes before the appointed time and is strapped onto a table. [The
chairs previously used for lethal gas executions have been removed.]

The inmate is connected to a cardiac monitor which is connected to a printer outside
the execution chamber. An 1V is started in two usable veins and a flow of normal
saline solution is administered at a slow rate. [One line is held in reserve in case of
a blockage or malfunction in the other.] The door is closed. The warden issues the
execution order.

The Execution
e 5.0 grams of sodium pentothal in 20-25 cc of diluent
e 50 cc of pancuronium bromide
e 50 cc of potassium chloride

Each chemical is lethal in the amounts administered.

At the warden’s signal, sodium pentothal is administered, then the line is flushed
with sterile normal saline solution. This is followed by pancuronium bromide, a
saline flush, and finally, potassium chloride. As required by the California Penal
Code, a physician is present to declare when death occurs.
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After all witnesses have left, the body is removed with dignity and care. Typically,
the family claims the body. If not, the State makes the arrangements.

Chamber Description

The California execution chamber is a self-contained unit at San Quentin State Prison
which includes:

Witness area——Entered via a door to the outside, the witness area has a view
of the chamber through five windows.

Execution chamber——An octagonal vacuum chamber, approximately 7-1/2
feet in diameter. It is entered through a large oval door at the rear of the
chamber.

Anteroom——Contains three telephones. One is kept open for use by the
Governor; the other is for use by the State Supreme Court and Attorney
General’s Office; the third is connected to the Warden's office. The lethal
injections are administered from the anteroom. The area also includes the
valves and immersion lever used for executions by lethal gas.

Chemical room——Includes storage cabinets and a work bench, plus the
chemical mixing pots, pipes and valves used for executions by lethal gas.

Two holding cells——Each contains a toilet and room for a mattress.

Kitchen/officers’ area——Includes a sink, cabinet, counter area and resting
area for staff.
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Witnesses

Up to 50 individuals may witness an execution. The following are specified in the
Penal Code:

Warden* 1

Attorney General 1

Reputable citizens 12

Physicians* 2

Inmate family/friends 5 (if requested)
Inmate spiritual advisor 2 (if requested)

State procedures also allow for:

News media representatives 17
State-selected witnesses 9
Staff escorts 4
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CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION

DIVISION OF ADULT OPERATIONS Printed Date: 10/20/2005
Death Row Tracking System
Condemned Inmate Summary List

The following is a statistical summary of iInmates sentenced to death In California

Ethnicity
Ethnic/Race Total Count Percent Total Males Percent Total Females Percent
White 256 3957 250 3864 G 0.83
Black 2249 35359 227 3508 2 0.31
Hispanic 123 19.01 117 18.08 G 0.93
Other 39 6.03 39 6.03 0 0.00
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Terri - Age 15
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- MY GARDEN ~

At times | go o the garden of my hear
and pluck a rose of memory,
The thorms ane sharp, and often pierce
to the point of pain,
But the beautiful fragrance of the rose
makes it all worthwhile,

The dewdrops that appear are only rears
from an aching, broken heart.

Then 1 leave my garden
and lock the gate .. for awhile,
Til the scent of roses draws me back,
once more ... o endure the bimersweet
pain ... of memory!

To mey listle roschisd, Terrd Lymn
Hreem hed Wi

Parhars Christian



